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Dear Shareholders, Dear Partners, Dear Aerospace Fans,

This year Aero celebrates the 90th anniversary of its foundation,

which ranks us among the oldest aerospace manufacturers

in the world. In 1919, Aero developed and carried out the maiden

flight of its first in-house designed type, the Aero A-1 aircraft,

and since then has produced more than 11,000 units

of different types: military as well as civill, subsonic as well

as supersonic, in-house designed as well as license produced

aircraft, delivered to the whole world. We are still a proud partner

to several air forces, particularly the Czech Air Force, flying

our L-39 and L-159 aircraft, who we will always provide

with first-class support. We can rightly be proud of what we have

achieved in the aerospace business, but at the same time have

to face the new situation on world markets, where it is getting

harder and harder to win as an original manufacturer.

Aerostructures projects represent more than 80% of our current

output. We have several programs - highly interesting

for us as well as from the global point of view. Our cooperation

with Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, for example, is certainly

unique in terms of the extent of finalization.

It is the experience from the development, production

and operational support of the in-house designed military

and civil types which distinguishes Aero from manufacturers

of particular subassemblies or mere parts. All large projects

today are dependent on the reliability of suppliers – and our

customers appreciate our complexity, high quality and reliability.

Moreover, Aero also provides its clients with the service of supply

chain management – the Alenia C-27J Program manages

30 companies, the Sikorsky S-76 Program more than 200.

So it is not just our history and tradition, but also the present time

showing that we are a modern, strong, stable and self-confident

company, fully focused on our new strategic aim: to build

a new international aerospace holding in the CEE region.

I wish to thank all our employees and partners who have

contributed to the grand tradition of Aero. And I am looking

forward to cooperating with everyone who is interested

in our current and future projects and is prepared to get involved.

Igor Hulák, President
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COMPANYPROFILE

CORPORATE PROFILE
AERO Vodochody a.s. (further referred to as Aero), based

in Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic,

is a joint-stock company registered in the Companies Register

maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 449

on January 2, 1991, Identification number: 00010545, VAT:

CZ00010545. Until the end of the year 2006, Aero was a state-owned

company. On January 4, 2007, Penta private equity group

became the sole shareholder of Aero and in the same year

successfully finished its restructuring process, the main result

of which was a profit in the amount of CZK 236 million posted by

Aero in 2007. Aero showed profit in 2008 as well, reaching

CZK 402 million. Until December 31, 2008, the share capital

of Aero amounted to CZK 5,014,088,734.

Aero is the largest aerospace manufacturer in the Czech Republic,

dealing with development, production, sales and support of military

and civil aerospace technology. Aero focuses mainly

on cooperation with world’s leading aerospace manufacturers

in international aerostructures projects. The Military Program

of Aero is the long-term partner to several air forces,

particularly the Czech Air Force. Aero has a certified quality

management system in accordance with AS 9100 / ISO 9001

and is a holder of all relevant certificates, as the company

as well as for all production processes in accordance with

national and international standards.

AEROSTRUCTURES PROGRAM
The Aerostructures Program of Aero focuses on comprehensive

deliveries of aerospace technology with a high degree of product

finalization, including systems integration and testing, full control

of quality, supply chain management and end-to-end customer

support starting from the production transfer phase, through

the implementation of customer's requirements during

the production phase to after-sales support. The Program is involved

in the entire life cycle of commercial and military projects,

and combines the company’s experience in aerospace production

dating back to 1919 with the everyday practice within running

serial production, using the latest technology and test methods.

Aero has been gradually expanding its portfolio of customers,

representing the world’s leading aerospace manufacturers.

In 2008, the production of Embraer 170/190 door subassemblies

for the French company Latecoere commenced as a part

of the Program, and a further major contract for deliveries

of JAS-39 Gripen pylons for the Swedish Saab was signed.

Production of the S-76 helicopter ready for installation of dynamic

parts for the U.S. customer Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation

continues, as do the deliveries of C-27J Spartan center wing box

for the Italian customer Alenia Aeronautica, F/A-18E/F/G gun bay

door for the U.S. Boeing Company, Boeing 767 fixed leading edge

assembly kits for British Spirit AeroSystems, Airbus 320/A340

subassemblies for the European concern EADS or Boeing 747

parts for Vought Aircraft Industries of the U.S.

MILITARY PROGRAM
The Military Program of Aero focuses on the comprehensive

support of Aero-branded final products – advanced training

and light combat aircraft. The single-seat advanced light combat

and two-seat advanced training L-159 aircraft represent the key

elements of the complex L-159 Combat & Training System,

which also includes an integrated logistic support, a ground

based training system, mission planning and debriefing

equipment and other support aids. The system was developed

in cooperation with leading international and national aerospace

manufacturers and is well-established in service with the Czech

Air Force. The single-seat L-159 ALCA advanced light combat

aircraft was put in service of the Czech Air Force in 2001 and the

two-seat L-159T advanced training aircraft followed suit in 2007.

As a part of the national air defence system, the L-159 squadron

flies a broad scale of missions, starting with advanced and

operational training, through ground support to reconnaissance

and air-to-air missions, regularly participating in international

exercises within the NATO (Tactical Leadership Programme,

NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter or Flying Rhino). Aero renders

services to the L-159 squadron on the basis of a long-term

agreement with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic.

To L-39/L-59 customers the Program offers a wide range

of services starting with service-life extension programs,

through overhauls to upgrades of all the systems of the aircraft.

PORTFOLIO OF COMPANIES
Aero is a 100% shareholder of Technometra Radotín, a.s.,

a traditional manufacturer of landing gears and other

aerostructures, and Letiště Vodochody a.s. (Vodochody Airport),

a private international airport. The potential of Aero was

significantly boosted by the acquisition of Rotortech Aero

Composites Ltd., a manufacturer of composites, by Penta

private equity group concluded in 2007.

STRATEGIC AIM
The strategic aim of Aero is to be the preferred partner

in first-class projects of leading aerospace manufacturers,

to participate in risk-sharing projects and offer flexible services

and advanced products in the global aerospace and defence

industry. Aero will keep developing its current potential

organically, by innovation and investment in advanced

technologies, as well as through international acquisitions.

Through acquisitions, Aero is going to build a new European

aerospace holding in the CEE region. Increasing its production

capacity and pooling experience in aerospace production will help

Aero offer even better services to its current customers, attract

new ones and better compete with the global players on the

aerospace market. In 2008, Aero bid in three privatization tenders

for aerospace manufacturers in the CEE region - the Romanian

aerospace producers Avioane Craiova and IAR Ghimbav,

and the Polish helicopter producer PZL Swidnik.

WE ARE GRADUALLY EXPANDING OUR PORTFOLIO
OF CUSTOMERS, REPRESENTING THE WORLD’S
LEADING AEROSPACE MANUFACTURERS
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HISTORY

EARLY DAYS
Aero was established on February 25, 1919, with a seat in the Old

Town of Prague and production premises in Prague-Bubenec.

Since its foundation, Aero focused on development and production

of aircraft, aerostructures and aircraft repairs, and in 1919

it carried out the first flight of its first indigenous type – the Aero

A-1 aircraft. An order from the Ministry of Defence for serial

production of this test-proven type designed for training of military

pilots soon followed – a product typical of much more distant future!

EXPANSION
More powerful training aircraft types followed, and after

the production was moved to new facilities in Prague-Vysocany,

a new family of reconnaissance, bomber and training biplanes

was born: Aero A-11 and A-12. Military pilots soon became

famous for breaking records and winning races in aircraft

bearing the Aero brand. Aero, at that time a private enterprise

owned by Dr. Vladimir Kabeš, became the main contractor

for the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of Public Works

(commercial aviation).

First foreign customers soon followed, starting with Finland.

Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number

of Czechoslovak firsts: it built a prototype of the first indigenous

fighter airplane, designed the first dedicated cabin transport

aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft, the first seaplane

with indigenously designed floats, introduced a braced high-wing

monoplane and also pioneered a practical design of a wooden

cantilever wing structure.

WAR PRODUCTION
The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilized

and later developed during the German occupation when Aero

produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with

full jigging for reconnaissance and training missions – Focke-

Wulf Fw 189 and Siebel Si 204.

POST-WAR PRODUCTION
Immediately after the war ended, the nationalized Aero continued

to produce and repair aircraft. Modified German aircraft types

were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air Force as well

as for commercial aviation. Shortly after the war, a new

groundbreaking indigenous type was introduced

- the high-performance, twin-engine, all-metal, four-seat Aero 45.

JET ERA
In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production

were built in Vodochody and were put into operation in the

same year. The production, in which several Czechoslovak

aviation plants were involved, focused on a large-scale license

series production of the Soviet MiG-15 aircraft and its derivatives.

The supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 aircraft were manufactured

by Aero through the 1960s and 1970s, paving the way

in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer programs

- the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.

INDIGENOUS JET TRAINERS
In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainer aircraft

became more and more urgent. Efforts by the Czechoslovak

aircraft industry, concentrated on developing an optimized

airframe and indigenous jet engine, resulted in the maiden flight

of the L-29 in 1959. The definitive step on Aero's way to mass

production of jet trainers took place in the summer of 1961

near Moscow: the L-29 Delfin won comparative tests of three

different prototypes and was declared the most suitable trainer

for the Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries

continued smoothly for the ten following years, during which

the second generation, a more powerful and more efficient

L-39 was developed. Production of the L-39 occupied Aero's

workshops and assembly halls during 1970s and 1980s.

A number of air forces around the world still benefit from

the excellent training quality of this affordable aircraft.

The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course

of time, forming a perfect basis for further development.

The advent of 1990s brought incorporation of Western avionics

and standards as well as the use of a more powerful American

engine and global equipment, and with it a start of a new chapter

in the life of the company. The L-159 aircraft was developed.

AERO WAS FOUNDED IN 1919 IN THE OLD TOWN
OF PRAGUE AND IN 1953 MOVED TO NEW FACILITIES
IN VODOCHODY

Production of the first Czech military aircraft in Aero, 1919.
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HISTORYTIMELINE

1943

1939 C4/C-104 (Bucker Bu-131
Jungmann) training
and aerobatic biplane

1938 A-304 twin-engine low
wing military aircraft
A-300 twin-engine
low wing bomber

1937 MB-200 all-metal
bomber produced
under French license
(Marcel Bloch)

1932 A-100 family,
military biplane
(bomber and reconnaissance)

1929 A-34 "Blackbird",
first of sport
and training light biplanes family

1925 De Havilland DH-50
airliner produced under
British license

1923 A-11 family of successful
military biplanes
(bomber
and reconnaissance)

A-10,
first indigenous civil airliner1921

1968 Maiden flight of L-39
Albatros jet trainer

(more than 2,900
aircraft delivered
1971-1999)

1962 Maiden flight of MiG-21 supersonic
fighter built by Aero under Soviet license
(194 aircraft delivered 1962-1972)

1959

1958 Maiden flight of MiG-19 supersonic
fighter built by Aero under Soviet license
(103 aircraft delivered 1958-1962)

1954 Maiden flight of first
MiG-15 jet fighter built under
Soviet license (3,405 aircraft delivered 1954-1962)

1953 Aero moved from Prague
to new facilities in Vodochody

1947 Ae-45
twin-engine civil
aircraft

1919

Maiden flight of L-29 Delfin (Dolphin),
first in-house designed jet trainer

(3,500 aircraft
delivered 1963-1974)

1997

1986

Maiden flight of L-159 advanced light combat aircraft
(72 aircraft delivered to Czech Air Force)

2000

2001 Production of F/A-18 gun bay door for Boeing St. Louis launched
Production of Boeing 767 fixed leading edge kits for BAE SYSTEMS
(today Spirit AeroSystems) launched

2002 Maiden flight of L-159B
advanced trainer

2004 Delivery of L-159 aircraft
to Czech Air Force completed

2005 Government of the Czech Republic decided on the privatization of Aero
Long-term agreement on Czech Air Force L-39/L-159
follow-on support signed

2007 Penta private equity group becomes the sole shareholder of Aero
L-159T advanced trainers delivered to Czech Air Force
Rotortech Composites Ltd. acquired by Penta
Production of C-27J Spartan center wing box
for Alenia Aeronautica launched

2008 Production of Embraer 170/190 door
subassemblies for Latecoere launched
Contract on JAS-39 Gripen
pylons production signed with Saab

C-3 (Siebel Si-204D)
twin-engine military aircraft

Aero founded in Prague
A-1, first indigenous
military training
aircraft

Maiden flight of L-39MS jet trainer, for export designated
L-59 Super Albatros (60 aircraft delivered 1992-1996)

Production of S-76 helicopter for Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation launched
Maiden flight of Ae 270 civil utility aircraft

Production of the first Czech military aircraft in Aero, 1919.
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L-29 DELFIN
- FIRST JET
TRAINER DESIGNED
IN CZECHOSLOVAKIA

COMPANYBODIES
ANDMANAGEMENT

WEDELIVER FLEXIBLE SERVICES
AND ADVANCED PRODUCTS IN THE GLOBAL
AEROSPACE AND DEFENCE INDUSTRY
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COMPANYBODIES
ANDMANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATIONCHART *

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:
Chairman: Zdeněk Sýkora

Members: Petr Brychta

Ondřej Benáček

SUPERVISORY BOARD AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:
Chairman: Václav Štajner

Members: Jan Borýsek

Martin Prachař

TOP MANAGEMENT AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:
Igor Hulák, President

Zdeněk Sýkora, Vice President Military Sales

Petr Kudrna, authorized to manage the Military Program

Monika Vajnerová, Vice President Aerostructures

Michal Flídr, Vice President Finance

Josef Kadlec, Vice President Operations

Jiří Sauer, Vice President Procurement

Martin Kačur, Vice President Airport Development

Zdeněk Bireš, Quality Director

Jiří Fiala, Engineering Director

Vladimíra Šeböková, HR Director

* as at December 31, 2008
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INDIGENOUS JET
TRAINER L-39 ALBATROS

MAIDEN FLIGHT

REPORTONBUSINESS
ACTIVITIES

DESPITE THE UNFAVORABLE SITUATION
ON THEWORLDMARKETS IN 2008, WE SHOWED
A PROFIT OF CZK 402 MILLION
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REPORTONBUSINESS
ACTIVITIES

REVENUES
In 2008, the revenues of Aero reached CZK 4.2 billion. The total

revenues were contributed to in 89% by the revenue from the sale

of own goods and services, in 9% by the revenue for goods sold

and in 2% by the revenue from the sale of material and property.

The revenues were mainly influenced by the aerostructures

programs, especially the production and sale of the civil

Sikorsky S-76 helicopters: 57 S-76C++ helicopters and one S-76D

prototype were delivered to Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation in 2008.

As for the other aerostructures programs, the Alenia C-27J

Program, producing the whole center wing box for the C-27J

Spartan tactical military cargo aircraft, the F/A-18

Program (gun bay door for Boeing), subassemblies for EADS

and Embraer 170/190 door subassemblies for Latecoere played

the most part in the revenue generation. As for the future,

the production of a new Sikorsky helicopter type and increased

deliveries for Alenia Aeronautica are in the pipeline, and further

development of the Aerostructures Program is projected.

The Military Program shared the revenues by 12%, mainly as

a result of delivering on the contracts with the Ministry of Defence

of the Czech Republic, aircraft storage and overhauls abroad.

The export reached the value of CZK 3,697 million and contributed

88% to the revenue. The growing share of export in the revenues

is caused by the higher volume of deliveries in aerostructures,

in particular the increase in the S-76C helicopter production and

deliveries of the C-27J center wing box for Alenia Aeronautica.

GENERAL FINANCIAL SITUATION
In 2008, the profit of Aero was significantly influenced

by the production and sales of the Sikorsky S-76 helicopter,

performance of contracts with the Ministry of Defence

of the Czech Republic, and by other aerostructures programs,

on which Aero focused.

The profit was also boosted by operating finance; the credit

line was drawn to the maximum limit of USD 60 million,

based on a revolving loan agreement for export finance,

and guarantees were signed between Aero and Česká exportní

banka a.s. The cooperation was further cemented by signing

a framework agreement on assignment of future export

receivables for consideration.

In 2008, Aero showed a profit of CZK 402 million, the highest

in the last six years. The equity as at December 31, 2008,

amounted to CZK 1.8 billion (2007: CZK 1.3 billion).

The profit from derivative operations amounted to CZK 78 million

in the first half of the year, and the loss to CZK 42 million in the

second half of 2008 (Aero actively uses exchange rate hedging).

The income interest from loans exceeded the interest from credits

by CZK 10 million. The exchange rate profit from revaluation of

loans was CZK 54 million higher than the losses. The financial

profit was positively influenced by the waiver of the principal

and interest on loans (CZK 170 million) from Salori Holding B.V.

The financial profit was negatively influenced by the final posting

of a charge in the amount of CZK 506 million related to the voluntary

liquidation of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. (founded as a joint venture

for the support of the Ae 270 aircraft development), against which

a provision in the amount of CZK 332 million was released, with

a share on the liquidation balance in the amount of CZK 16 million.

IN 2008, WE REACHED THE HIGHEST
PROFIT IN THE LAST SIX YEARS

PROFIT
In 2008, Aero showed a profit of CZK 401.6 million made up from

an operating profit of CZK 297.8 million, a financial profit of

CZK 93.7 million and an extraordinary income of CZK 10 million.

In 2008, the operating profit was positively influenced by the better

than planned revenue from the Sikorsky Program (by CZK 133

million) and the Military Program (by CZK 117 million).

The operating profit, on the other hand, was negatively weighted

by the development in the exchange rate of the Czech Crown

to the U.S. Dollar and Euro, especially in the first half of the year.

The effect of the exchange rate on the decrease of the operating

profit was more than CZK 75 million.

The financial profit was significantly influenced by the situation

on the capital markets in 2008, where profits and losses reflected

the movement of the exchange rate of the U.S. Dollar to the

Czech Crown – the fall of the U.S. Dollar in the first half of the

year, as well as its rally in the second.
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REPORTONBUSINESS
ACTIVITIES

In 2008, the fixed assets in the amount of CZK 1,029 million

represented 24% of the total assets of Aero. Compared to 2007,

their net book value was increased by CZK 25 million, mainly as

a result of purchase of properties for the airport development

in the amount of CZK 25 million and acquisition of individual

movable assets, causing an increase of CZK 34 million,

mainly of the machine park. Compared to 2007, the intangibles

in progress were CZK 12 million lower.

PROPERTY STRUCTURE
AND FINANCING RESOURCES
In 2008, the total assets of Aero increased 33% compared to 2007,

up to the total amount (net) of CZK 4,370 million. Short-term

assets of CZK 3,182 million (i.e. 73% of the total assets)

as at December 31, 2008, were made up from inventory

(CZK 1,334 million), short-term receivables (CZK 1,624 million)

and short-term financial assets (CZK 224 million).

Compared to 2007, the short-term assets increased 41%

and reached CZK 3,182 million – mainly as a result of an increase

in receivables from the controlling entity (to the amount

of CZK 905 million). Receivables from business relations

increased 36% (to CZK 632 million) mainly as a result

of the higher deliveries of the S-76C++ helicopters; inventory

for material went up 15% and advances on inventory were up

significantly (CZK 144 million) due to a highly competitive price

offered by the largest supplier of the company. The short-term

financial assets decreased to CZK 224 million.

The share of the equity on the total assets of the company was

40.4% at the end of 2008. Entities participating in the share

capital are TULAROSA a.s. (51%) and Salori Holding B.V. (49%).

TULAROSA, a part of the consolidated group Penta Investments

Limited, is the parent company. Compared to 2007, the equity

increased by CZK 476 million (37%). The increase was influenced

by retained earnings (CZK 224 million), a higher profit

of the current year by CZK 166 million (totalling CZK 402 million),

lower differences arising from the revaluation of financial

investments (IBIS) and the revaluation of hedging derivatives

(CZK 75 million), and by an increase of CZK 12 million

in the legal reserve fund.

Provisions and liabilities increased 32% up to 2,581 million,

driven mainly by drawing on the revolving loan facility

for the financing of the Sikorsky production (CZK 521 million)

and a CZK 189 million year-on-year increase of current liabilities.

The total gearing of the company represents 59.1% of its value.

(CZK 23 million on accrued basis.)

IN 2008, THE TOTAL ASSETS INCREASED 33%
COMPARED TO 2007
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REPORTONBUSINESS
ACTIVITIES

ENVIRONMENT
In 2008, Aero produced a total of 15.8 tons of pollutants (out of

which 7.7 tons of volatile organics, 6.7 tons of nitrogen oxide

and 1 ton of solid particles). The largest volume of emissions

is attributed to the boiler plant, chemical plants and paint-shops.

In 2007, the company paid CZK 25,200 on fees. Measurements

of all sources proved that in 2008 all emission standards were met.

Aero produced 948.84 tons of waste (out of which 348.05 tons

of dangerous waste), expended CZK 1,503,059 on waste disposal

and earned CZK 1,874,979 from the sale of its waste in 2008.

In 2008, Aero consumed 99 thousand m2 of underground water

(out of which 7.8 thousand m2 for industry technology) and

produced 57.8 thousand m2 of sewerage water. Water usage fees

amounted to CZK 205,800. Water discharge fees were not assessed

in the year 2008, because standards laid down in the Act No.

254/2001 Coll., on waters, as amended, were not exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES
In 2008, Aero continued in the iniciated process of restructuring

and stabilization of employees. The average recalculated

number of employees in 2008 was 1,293 and the total number

of employees as at December 31, 2008, was 1,321. In 2008,

more than 160 employees were recruited, mainly blue-collar

positions in the current and new production programs;

and more than 180 employees left the Company.

In 2008, the total staff turnover reached 2.2%, a decrease

of 3.5% compared to 2007. The average salary reached CZK 31.748,

representing a year-on-year increase of CZK 600.

In 2008, Aero put great emphasis on training and education

of employees, not only in the areas required by law. The total

training and education costs amounted to CZK 3,877,350 in 2008,

which translates into CZK 2,999 per employee.

WE PUT GREAT EMPHASIS ON TRAINING
AND EDUCATION OF EMPLOYEES
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AUDITOR'SREPORT
ONANNUALREPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing and the related implementation guidance

issued by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the information

presented in the annual report that describes the facts reflected

in the financial statements is consistent, in all material respects,

with the financial statements.

We have checked that the accounting information presented in

the annual report on pages 6 -27 is consistent with that contained

in the audited financial statements as at 31 December 2008.

Our work as auditors was confined to checking the annual report

with the aforementioned scope and did not include a review

of any information other than that drawn from the audited

accounting records of the Company. We believe that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

To the Shareholders of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

I. We have audited the financial statements of AERO

Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2008

presented in the annual report of the Company on pages

38 - 65, on which we have issued an auditors’ report dated

2 April 2008, presented in the annual report on pages 34 -35.

II. We have also audited the consistency of the annual report

with the financial statements described above.

The management of AERO Vodochody a.s. is responsible

for the accuracy of the annual report. Our responsibility is to

express, based on our audit, an opinion on the consistency

of the annual report with the financial statements.

Based on our audit, the accounting information presented in

the annual report is consistent, in all material respects,

with the financial statements described above.

III. In addition, we have reviewed the accuracy of the

information contained in the report on related parties of

AERO Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2008

presented in the annual report of the Company on pages

68 - 69. The management of AERO Vodochody a.s. is

responsible for the preparation of the report on related

parties. Our responsibility is to issue a report based on

our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the applicable

International Standard on Review Engagements and the related

implementation guidance issued by the Chamber of Auditors of

the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether

the report on related parties is free from material misstatement.

The review is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel,

to analytical procedures applied to financial data and to examining,

on a test basis, the accuracy of information, and thus provides

less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit

and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that

causes us to believe that the report on related parties of AERO

Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2008 is materially

misstated.

2 April 2009, Prague, Czech Republic

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.

License No. 401

Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek

Auditor, License No. 1291
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management is responsible for the preparation and fair

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and

maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and

applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards

on Auditing as amended by implementation guidance of the

Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

To the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of

AERO Vodochody a.s., which comprise the balance sheet as

at 31 December 2008, and the income statement and cash flow

statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes. For details of

AERO Vodochody a.s. see Note 1 to the financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of AERO Vodochody a.s.

as at 31 December 2008, and its financial performance and its

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the facts

disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. As at 31

December 2008, the Company recorded equity of CZK 1,765,860

thousand and accumulated loss of CZK 4,080,558 thousand.

In compliance with the Commercial Code, a company whose

accumulated loss exceeds half of its basic capital must file for

bankruptcy or take measures aimed at reducing the loss.

The future of Company is outlined in Note 23 to the financial

statements. The ability of the Company to continue as a going

concern is contingent on the strategic decisions and successful

development of the plans of the new shareholder of the Company

– Penta. The accompanying financial statements have been

prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going

concern entity and do not include any adjustments that might

result from this uncertainty.

2 April 2009, Prague, Czech Republic

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.

License No. 401

Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek

Auditor, License No. 1291
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CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr  22000077

GGrroossss PPrroovviissiioonnss NNeett NNeett

TTOOTTAALL  AASSSSEETTSS 77,,773311,,889911      --33,,336611,,888844      44,,337700,,000077      33,,228800,,332288      
AA.. SSTTOOCCKK  SSUUBBSSCCRRIIPPTTIIOONN  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEE

BB.. FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS 22,,997799,,000055      --11,,995500,,223366      11,,002288,,776699      11,,000033,,773399      

BB.. II.. IInnttaannggiibbllee  aasssseettss 223377,,229944      --223300,,557766      66,,771188      66,,998844      
B. I. 1 Foundation and organization expenses

2 Research and development
3 Software 186,295   -180,621   5,674   4,311   
4 Patents, royalties and similar rights 49,955   -49,955   0   
5 Goodwill
6 Other intangible assets 1,044   1,044   1,721   
7 Intangible assets in progress 952   
8 Advances granted for intangible assets

BB.. IIII.. TTaannggiibbllee  aasssseettss 22,,662288,,339911      --11,,771188,,556600      990099,,883311      888800,,559988      
B. II. 1 Land 204,656   0   204,656   179,460   

2 Constructions 983,495   -504,471   479,024   492,163   
3 Separate movable items and groups of movable items 1,409,643   -1,208,153   201,490   168,123   
4 Perennial crops
5 Livestock 
6 Other tangible assets 5,875   -5,756   119   119   
7 Tangible assets in progress 24,542   24,542   36,513   
8 Advances granted for tangible assets 180   -180   0   4,220   
9 Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

BB.. IIIIII.. FFiinnaanncciiaall  iinnvveessttmmeennttss 111133,,332200      --11,,110000      111122,,222200      111166,,115577      
B. III. 1 Subsidiaries 112,220   112,220   116,157   

2 Associates 1,100   -1,100   0   
3 Other long-term securities and  interests
4 Loans to subsidiaries and associates
5 Other long-term investments
6 Long-term investments in progress
7 Advances granted for long-term investments

CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr  22000077
GGrroossss PPrroovviissiioonnss NNeett NNeett

CC.. CCUURRRREENNTT  AASSSSEETTSS 44,,559933,,776666      --11,,441111,,664488      33,,118822,,111188      22,,225533,,008866      

CC.. II.. IInnvveennttoorryy 22,,773311,,553366      --11,,339977,,559988      11,,333333,,993388      11,,115544,,221122      
C. I. 1 Materials 1,871,165   -1,154,690   716,475   620,723   

2 Work in progress and semi-finished production 687,567   -230,917   456,650   500,370   
3 Finished products
4 Livestock
5 Goods 20,090   -2,882   17,208   1,530   
6 Advances granted for inventory 152,714   -9,109   143,605   31,589   

CC.. IIII.. LLoonngg--tteerrmm  rreecceeiivvaabblleess 00      00      00      1188,,886699      
C. II. 1 Trade receivables

2 Receivables from group companies with majority control
3 Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
4 Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
5 Long-term advances granted 18,869   
6 Unbilled revenue
7 Other receivables
8 Deferred tax asset

CC.. IIIIII.. SShhoorrtt--tteerrmm  rreecceeiivvaabblleess 11,,663388,,113388      --1144,,005500      11,,662244,,008888      779922,,996644      
C. III. 1 Trade receivables 639,669   -7,187   632,482   465,441   

2 Receivables from group companies with majority control 905,263   905,263   211,751   
3 Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
4 Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
5 Social security and health insurance
6 Due from government - tax receivables 20,792   20,792   12,926   
7 Short-term advances granted 9,673   -6,733   2,940   29,528   
8 Unbilled revenue 60,837   0   60,837   22,140   
9 Other receivables 1,904   -130   1,774   51,178   

CC.. IIVV.. SShhoorrtt--tteerrmm  ffiinnaanncciiaall  aasssseettss 222244,,009922      00      222244,,009922      228877,,004411      
C. IV. 1 Cash 10,261   10,261   6,235   

2 Bank accounts 213,831   213,831   280,806   
3 Short-term securities and interests 0   
4 Short-term financial assets in progress

DD.. OOTTHHEERR  AASSSSEETTSS  --  TTEEMMPPOORRAARRYY  AACCCCOOUUNNTTSS  OOFF  AASSSSEETTSS 115599,,112200      00      115599,,112200      2233,,550033      

DD.. II.. AAccccrruueedd  aasssseettss  aanndd  ddeeffeerrrreedd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 115599,,112200      00    115599,,112200      2233,,550033      
D. I. 1 Prepaid expenses 13,162   13,162   15,877   

2 Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 0   
3 Unbilled revenue 145,958   145,958   7,626   
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CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr

22000077

TTOOTTAALL  EEQQUUIITTYY  &&  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS 44,,337700,,000077      33,,228800,,332288      
AA.. EEQQUUIITTYY 11,,776655,,886600      11,,228899,,773366      

AA.. II.. BBaassiicc  ccaappiittaall 55,,001144,,008899      55,,001144,,008899      
A. I. 1 Registered capital 5,014,089   5,014,089   

2 Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
3 Changes in basic capital

AA.. IIII.. CCaappiittaall  ffuunnddss --2211,,664411      335533,,882244      
A II. 1 Share premium (agio) 450,000   

2 Other capital funds 28,720   28,720   
3 Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities -50,361   -124,896   
4 Gain or loss on revaluation of company transformations

AA IIIIII.. RReesseerrvvee  ffuunnddss  aanndd  ootthheerr  ffuunnddss  ccrreeaatteedd  ffrroomm  pprrooffiitt 222288,,003399      221166,,225511      
A III. 1 Legal reserve fund 211,531   199,743   

2 Statutory and other funds 16,508   16,508   

AA.. IIVV.. PPrrooffiitt  ((lloossss))  ffoorr  tthhee  pprreevviioouuss  yyeeaarrss --33,,885566,,221166      --44,,553300,,118811      
IV. 1 Retained earnings for the previous years 224,342   377   

2 Accumulated loss of previous years -4,080,558   -4,530,558   

AA.. VV.. PPrrooffiitt  ((lloossss))  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  ((++  //  --)) 440011,,558899      223355,,775533  

CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr
22000077

BB.. LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS 22,,558800,,775500      11,,995500,,338899      

BB.. II.. PPrroovviissiioonnss 225577,,779944      118877,,116644      
B. I. 1 Provisions created under special legislation

2 Provision for pensions and similar obligations
3 Provision for corporate income tax
4 Other provisions 257,794   187,164   

BB.. IIII.. LLoonngg--tteerrmm  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 556644,,888822      771144,,882222      
B. II. 1 Trade payables

2 Liabilities to group companies with majority control 564,882   714,822   
3 Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
4 Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
5 Advances received
6 Bonds payable
7 Notes payable
8 Unbilled deliveries
9 Other liabilities

10 Deferred tax liability

BB.. IIIIII.. CCuurrrreenntt  lliiaabbiilliittiieess 662255,,995588      443377,,119900      
B. III. 1 Trade payables 342 228   245,389   

2 Liabilities to group companies with majority control
3 Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
4 Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
5 Liabilities to employees 32,412   27,424   
6 Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance 17,104   17,103   
7 Due to government – taxes and subsidies 6,189   8,683   
8 Advances received 80,996   62,169   
9 Bonds payable

10 Unbilled deliveries 92,179   74,887   
11 Other liabilities 54,850   1,535   

BB.. IIVV.. BBaannkk  llooaannss  aanndd  bboorrrroowwiinnggss 11,,113322,,111166      661111,,221133      
B. IV. 1 Long-term bank loans

2 Short-term bank loans 1,132,116   611,213   
3 Borrowings

CC..  OOTTHHEERR  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS  --  TTEEMMPPOORRAARRYY  AACCCCOOUUNNTTSS  OOFF  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS 2233,,339977      4400,,220033      

CC.. II.. AAccccrruueedd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  ddeeffeerrrreedd  aasssseettss 2233,,339977      4400,,220033      
C. I. 1 Accruals 23,011   33,149   

2 Deferred income 386   7,054



1919 2009

42 | | 43

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr

22000077

I. 1 Revenue from sale of goods 356,383   289,481   
A. 2 Cost of goods sold 336,583   281,975   

++ GGRROOSSSS  MMAARRGGIINN 1199,,880000      77,,550066      

IIII.. PPrroodduuccttiioonn 33,,776611,,883322      33,,770099,,882200      
II. 1 Revenue from sale of finished products and services 3,744,746   4,017,506   

2 Change in inventory produced internally -30,910   -319,908   
3 Own work capitalized 47,996   12,222   

BB.. PPrroodduuccttiioonn  rreellaatteedd  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  22,,661155,,449988      22,,771166,,771188      
B. 1 Consumption of material and energy 2,267,229   2,375,566   
B. 2 Services 348,269   341,152   

++ VVAALLUUEE  AADDDDEEDD 11,,116666,,113344      11,,000000,,660088      

CC.. PPeerrssoonnnneell  eexxppeennsseess 667744,,119966      771177,,222222      
C. 1 Wages and salaries 497,527   527,290   
C. 2 Bonuses to members of company or cooperation bodies 360   325   
C. 3 Social security and health insurance 165,293   177,388   
C. 4 Other social costs 11,016   12,219   
D. 1 Taxes and charges 4,863   3,640   
E. 1 Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets 82,564   79,625   

IIIIII.. RReevveennuuee  ffrroomm  ssaallee  ooff  iinnttaannggiibbllee  aanndd  ttaannggiibbllee  ffiixxeedd  aasssseettss  aanndd  mmaatteerriiaallss 110000,,771199      4444,,992200      
III. 1 Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets 85,760   22,293   

2 Revenue from sale of materials 14,959   22,627   
FF.. NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  ooff  iinnttaannggiibbllee  aanndd  ttaannggiibbllee  ffiixxeedd  aasssseettss  aanndd  mmaatteerriiaallss  ssoolldd 8877,,442222      1111,,778844      
F. 1 Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold 74,121   1,969   
F. 2 Materials sold 13,301   9,815   
G. 1 Change in reserves and provisions relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 69,050   -199,025   

IV. 1 Other operating revenues 3,087,786   1,978,174   
H. 2 Other operating expenses 3,138,732   2,046,310   

V. 1 Transfer of operating revenues
I. 2 Transfer of operating expenses

CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr
22000077

** PPRROOFFIITT  OORR  LLOOSSSS  OONN  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS 229977,,881122      336644,,114466      

VI. 1 Revenue from sale of securities and interests
J. 2 Securities and interests sold

VVIIII.. IInnccoommee  ffrroomm  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinnvveessttmmeennttss 2200,,113311      00      
VII. 1 Income from subsidiaries and associates 20,131      

2 Income from other long-term securities and interests
3 Income from other financial investments

VIII.1 Income from short-term financial assets 19   364   
K. 2 Expenses related to financial assets 510,134   

IX. 1 Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives 78,019   
L. 2 Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives 42,445   
M. 1 Change in reserves and provisions relating to financial activities -332,190   -23,900   

X. 1 Interest income 65,533   30,137   
N. 2 Interest expense 55,811   86,482   

XI. 1 Other finance income 565,914   146,886   
O. 2 Other finance cost 359,725   242,469   

XII. 1 Transfer of finance income
P. 2 Transfer of finance cost

** PPRROOFFIITT  OORR  LLOOSSSS  OONN  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS 9933,,669911      --112277,,666644      

QQ.. TTaaxx  oonn  pprrooffiitt  oorr  lloossss  oonn  oorrddiinnaarryy  aaccttiivviittiieess 00      00      
Q. 1 - due
Q. 2 - deferred

**** PPRROOFFIITT  OORR  LLOOSSSS  OONN  OORRDDIINNAARRYY  AACCTTIIVVIIEESS  AAFFTTEERR  TTAAXXAATTIIOONN 339911,,550033      223366,,448822      

XIII.1 Extraordinary gains 17,196   2,542   
R. 2 Extraordinary losses 7,110   3,271   
SS.. 11 TTaaxx  oonn  eexxttrraaoorrddiinnaarryy  pprrooffiitt  oorr  lloossss 00      00      
S. 1 - due
S. 2 - deferred

** EEXXTTRRAAOORRDDIINNAARRYY  PPRROOFFIITT  OORR  LLOOSSSS 1100,,008866      --772299      

T. 1 Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

****** PPRROOFFIITT    OORR  LLOOSSSS  FFOORR  TTHHEE  YYEEAARR  ((++//--)) 440011,,558899      223355,,775533      

******** PPRROOFFIITT    OORR  LLOOSSSS  BBEEFFOORREE  TTAAXXAATTIIOONN 440011,,558899      223355,,775533      
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CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr

22000077

CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

ZZ.. PPRROOFFIITT  OORR  LLOOSSSS  OONN  OORRDDIINNAARRYY  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  BBEEFFOORREE  TTAAXXAATTIIOONN  ((++//--)) 339911,,550033      223366,,448822      

AA.. 11.. AAddjjuussttmmeennttss  ttoo  rreeccoonncciillee  pprrooffiitt  oorr  lloossss  ttoo  nneett  ccaasshh  pprroovviiddeedd  bbyy  oorr  uusseedd  iinn  ooppeerraattiinngg  aaccttiivviittiieess --330066,,550022      223322,,996699      
A. 1. 1. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 126,184   84,809   
A. 1. 2. Change in provisions -333,772   -220,044   
A. 1. 3. Change in reserves 70,630   -2,915   
A. 1. 4. Foreign exchange differences 22,209   -7,900   
A. 1. 5. (Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets -11,639   -20,324   
A. 1. 6. Interest expense and interest income -9,722   56,345   
A. 1. 7. Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received) -170,392   342,998   

AA ** NNEETT  CCAASSHH  FFRROOMM  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  BBEEFFOORREE  TTAAXXAATTIIOONN,,
CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  WWOORRKKIINNGG  CCAAPPIITTAALL  AANNDD  EEXXTTRRAAOORRDDIINNAARRYY  IITTEEMMSS

8855,,000011      446699,,445511

AA.. 22.. CChhaannggee  iinn  nnoonn--ccaasshh  ccoommppoonneennttss  ooff  wwoorrkkiinngg  ccaappiittaall  --115566,,554466      11  002277,,440022      
A. 2. 1. Change in inventory -172,486   344,784   
A. 2. 2. Change in trade receivables -182,878   337,876   
A. 2. 3. Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue -54,187   -74,824   
A. 2. 4. Change in trade payables 96,839   -61,552   
A. 2. 5. Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income 156,166   481,118   

AA **** NNEETT  CCAASSHH  FFRROOMM  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS  BBEEFFOORREE  TTAAXXAATTIIOONN,,
IINNTTEERREESSTT  PPAAIIDD  AANNDD  EEXXTTRRAAOORRDDIINNAARRYY  IITTEEMMSS

--7711,,554455      11,,449966,,885533      

A. 3. 1. Interest paid -33,907   
A. 4. 1. Tax paid
A. 5. 1. Gains and losses on extraordinary items 171   

AA ****** NNEETT  CCAASSHH  PPRROOVVIIDDEEDD  BBYY  ((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  OOPPEERRAATTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS --110055,,445522      11,,449977,,002244

CCuurrrreenntt  yyeeaarr PPrriioorr  yyeeaarr
22000077

CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  IINNVVEESSTTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

B. 1. 1. Purchase of fixed assets 125,791   -82,487   
B. 2. 1. Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 85,760   22,293   
B. 3. 1. Loans granted -646,901   -212,576   
B. 4. 1. Interest received 25,291   7,997   
B. 5. 1. Dividends received

BB ****** NNEETT  CCAASSHH  PPRROOVVIIDDEEDD  BBYY  ((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  IINNVVEESSTTIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS --441100,,005599      --226644,,777733      

CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  FFRROOMM  FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS

C. 1. 1. Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans 452,562   -1,345,087   

C. 2. 1. Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
C. 2. 2. Dividends or profit sharing paid
C. 2. 3. Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

CC ****** NNEETT  CCAASSHH  PPRROOVVIIDDEEDD  BBYY  ((UUSSEEDD  IINN))  FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG  AACCTTIIVVIITTIIEESS 445522,,556622      --11,,334455,,008877      

FF.. NNEETT  IINNCCRREEAASSEE  ((DDEECCRREEAASSEE))  IINN  CCAASSHH --6622,,994499      --111122,,883366      
PP.. CCAASSHH  AANNDD  CCAASSHH  EEQQUUIIVVAALLEENNTTSS  AATT  BBEEGGIINNNNIINNGG  OOFF  YYEEAARR 228877,,004411      339999,,887777      
RR.. CCAASSHH  AANNDD  CCAASSHH  EEQQUUIIVVAALLEENNTTSS  AATT  EENNDD  OOFF  YYEEAARR 222244,,009922      228877,,004411      
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DD))  IINNVVEENNTTOORRYY
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using 
the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include 
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc.).
Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard
cost, which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced internally
includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs. 
Effective from 1 January 2007, the Company changed the valuation method
of work-in-progress and semi-finished products regarding the amount 
of allocated overheads. The result of the change was a diminution in 
inventory value of work-in-progress and semi-finished products of 
CZK 271,701 thousand and related decrease of Company’s operating profit.
Production overhead costs include energy, repairs and maintenance, 
telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production 
services and materials and are allocated based on direct labor hours.

EE))  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value
after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance account
are charged to income.

FF))  DDEERRIIVVAATTIIVVEESS
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other
short-term receivables or payables, as appropriate, in the accompanying
balance sheet.
Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging 
derivatives.
The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value 
of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must offset, in whole or in part,
the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the hedged item. 
In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship
at inception and the Company must prove that the hedging relationship 
is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as 
held-for-trading.
Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. 
Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are reported 
in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value
hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. 
Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are
taken to equity and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on
revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
reported in income.

11..  DDEESSCCRRIIPPTTIIOONN  OOFF  TTHHEE  CCOOMMPPAANNYY
AERO Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated
on 2 January 1991 in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office
is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic
and the business registration number (IČ) is 00010545.
The Company is involved in cooperation in production of helicopters 
and aerostrustures, foreign trade of military products, development, 
production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets,
airport operation and other aircraft related work. With the exception 
of the change in the scope of the Company’s business, no significant 
changes were made to the Commercial Register entry in 2008.

SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  wwhhoo  hhoolldd  aa  1100%%  oorr  ggrreeaatteerr  iinntteerreesstt  iinn  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy’’ss  bbaassiicc
ccaappiittaall  aarree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::
TULAROSA a.s. 51.00%
Salori Holding B.V. 49.00%

The parent company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located 
at Na Příkopě 583/15, Praha 1, Czech Republic.
The Company is included in the consolidated group of Penta Investments
Limited with the registered office in Agias Fylaxeos & Polygnostou, 212,
C&I CENTER, P.C. 3803, Limassol, Cyprus.
The Company is the parent company of the AERO Vodochody Group 
and the accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate
financial statements.
The Company has concluded neither control agreement nor agreement 
on profit distribution with the parent company.

MMeemmbbeerrss  ooff  tthhee  ssttaattuuttoorryy  bbooddiieess  aass  aatt  3311 DDeecceemmbbeerr  22000088  wweerree  aass  ffoolllloowwss::
Board of Directors
Chairman: Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Member: Ing. Petr Brychta
Member: Ondřej Benáček

Supervisory Board
Chairman: Mgr. Václav Štajner
Member: Bc. Martin Prachař
Member: Jan Borýsek

In 2008 there were no changes in the Company’s statutory bodies.
The Company has no foreign branch.

22..  BBAASSIISS  OOFF  PPRREESSEENNTTAATTIIOONN  OOFF  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance 
with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as applicable
for 2008 and 2007.

33..  EEXXPPLLAANNAATTIIOONN  AADDDDEEDD  FFOORR  TTRRAANNSSLLAATTIIOONN  IINNTTOO  EENNGGLLIISSHH
These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting
principles and standards generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform 
with generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the 
Czech Republic may not conform with generally accepted accounting 
principles in other countries.

44..  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  OOFF  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS
The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2008 
and 2007 financial statements are as follows:

AA))  IINNTTAANNGGIIBBLLEE  FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related
expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized
over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets (with a cost
of less than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried
only in a subsidiary ledger.

AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated
useful life of the related asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

YYeeaarrss
Software 3
Patents, royalties and similar rights 15

BB))  TTAANNGGIIBBLLEE  FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS
Purchased tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are
recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs.
Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated
cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production overheads.
Interest and other financial expenses incurred in the construction of tangible
fixed assets are also capitalized.
Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement
cost and are recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other capital
funds account’ on the date of acquisition. 
The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis of the cost known
at the moment of the respective asset acquisition.
The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance
expenses are expensed as incurred.

DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated
useful life of the related asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

YYeeaarrss
Constructions 30 – 45
Machinery and equipment 10 – 30
Vehicles 8 – 20
Furniture and fixtures 4 – 15
Other tangible fixed assets 5 – 20

CC))  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  AASSSSEETTSS
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand 
and at bank.
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests 
and shareholdings.
Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes
the purchase price and direct costs related to the acquisition, e.g. fees
and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges. In respect of debt
securities, interest income is recorded observing the matching and accrual
principles. Accrued interest income is included in the relevant securities
account.
As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant
influence are valued at acquisition cost; the foreign currency revaluation
amounts are recorded in equity through the ’revaluation of assets and
liabilities’ caption.
If there is a decrease in the carrying value of long-term financial assets
that are not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered
a temporary diminution in value and is recorded as an allowance.
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GG))  EEQQUUIITTYY
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the
Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court. Any increase 
or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant to the decision of the 
General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial Register as at
the financial statements date is recorded through changes in basic capital.
Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded as share premium.
Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s Articles of 
Incorporation. In accordance with the Commercial Code, the Company
creates a legal reserve fund from profit.
In the first year in which profit is generated, a joint-stock company should
allocate 20% of profit after tax (however, not more than 10% of basic 
capital) to the legal reserve fund. In subsequent years, the legal reserve
fund is allocated 5% of profit after tax until the fund reaches 20% of basic
capital. These funds can only be used to offset losses.

HH))  PPRROOVVIISSIIOONNSS  AANNDD  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal 
values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives 
at fair value are shown in other payables.
Short-term and long-term loans are recorded at their nominal values. 
Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year of the balance
sheet date is classified as short-term debt.
Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because
significant uncertainties exist with respect to the amount, title or timing 
of the expected outflow of benefits are described in Note 19.

II))  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  LLEEAASSEESS
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments 
and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when the lease 
contract expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments
paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and amortized over 
the lease term.

JJ))  FFOORREEIIGGNN  CCUURRRREENNCCYY  TTRRAANNSSAACCTTIIOONNSS
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns 
at the exchange rate prevailing as at the transaction date. 
On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange
rates as published by the Czech National Bank as at 31 December.
Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged 
or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.

KK))  RREECCOOGGNNIITTIIOONN  OOFF  RREEVVEENNUUEESS  AANNDD  EEXXPPEENNSSEESS
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they
are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related goods
or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.
The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or 
allowances against risks, losses or physical damage that are known as at
the financial statements’ date.
Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed 
contract method (or as specified in the contract).

LL))  IINNCCOOMMEE  TTAAXX
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory 
tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by the 
appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible
provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences between
book and tax depreciation, etc.).
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate income
tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only when it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

MM))  SSUUBBSSIIDDIIEESS
In 2008 and 2007, the Company received subsidies from the government 
of CZK 12,327 thousand and CZK 14,394 thousand, respectively which were
accounted for as other operating revenues.
Received subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment 
enables the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization.

NN))  EEMMIISSSSIIOONN  AALLLLOOWWAANNCCEESS
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, 
which are not amortized and are valued at cost or replacement cost when
acquired free-of-charge.
The “use of emission allowances” is recorded at least as at the financial
statements’ date corresponding to the volume of accounting unit’s 
emissions in the calendar year. The first free-of-charge acquisition is 
recorded as subsidy, which is not deducted from the cost of intangible 
fixed assets. This “subsidy” is recognized into income at the time and
in the amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.

44..  FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS
AA))  IINNTTAANNGGIIBBLLEE  FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS  ((IINN  CCZZKK  TTHHOOUUSSAANNDDSS))

CCOOSSTT AAtt  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  yyeeaarr AAddddiittiioonnss DDiissppoossaallss TTrraannssffeerrss AAtt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr
Software 179,696 - - 6,599 186,295
Patents, royalties and similar rights 49,955 - - 49,955
Other intangibles 1,721 4,169 (4,846) - 1,044
Intangibles in progress 952 5,647 - (6,599) -
2008 Total 232,324 9,816 (4,846) - 237,294
2007 Total 232,202 3,695 (3,573) - 232,324

AACCCCUUMMUULLAATTEEDD  AAMMOORRTTIIZZAATTIIOONN AAtt  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  yyeeaarr AAmmoorrttiizzaattiioonn  dduurriinngg  yyeeaarr AAtt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee
Software (175,385) (5,236) (180,621) 5,674
Patents, royalties and similar rights (49,955) - (49,955) -
Other intangibles - - - 1,044
2008 Total (225,340) (5,236) (230,576) 6,718
2007 Total (218,952) (6,388) (225,340) 6,984

Patents, royalties and similar rights are amortized over their useful lives as specified in the relevant contracts.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 5,292
thousand and CZK 5,273 thousand at acquisition cost, respectively.
Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 183,799 thousand are fully amortized as at 31 December 2008.
Other intangible fixed assets represent carbon emission allowances (“allowances”). The Company was issued free of charge allowances constituting the right 
to emit 6,288 tones of gas emissions in 2008. These emission allowances were valued at their replacement cost totaling CZK 3,790 thousand. 
See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2008. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):

VVaalluuee  ooff  eemmiissssiioonn  aalllloowwaanncceess OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  rreevveennuueess OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess OOtthheerr  lliiaabbiilliittiieess
At beginning of year 1,721 - - (1,721)
Free of charge allocation of allowances 3,790 - - (3,790)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2008

(2,367) 2,367 (2,367) 2,367

Return of allowances (2,100) - - (2,100)
Total as at 31 December 2008 1,044 2,367 (2,367) (1,044)

See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2007. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):

VVaalluuee  ooff  eemmiissssiioonn  aalllloowwaanncceess OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  rreevveennuueess OOtthheerr  ooppeerraattiinngg  eexxppeennsseess OOtthheerr  lliiaabbiilliittiieess
At beginning of year 5,001 - - (5,001)
Free of charge allocation of allowances 293 - - (293)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2007

(3,573) 3,573 (3,573) 3,573

Total as at 31 December 2007 1,721 3,573 (3,573) (1,721)
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BB))  TTAANNGGIIBBLLEE  FFIIXXEEDD  AASSSSEETTSS  ((IINN  CCZZKK  TTHHOOUUSSAANNDDSS))

CCOOSSTT AAtt  bbeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff  yyeeaarr AAddddiittiioonnss DDiissppoossaallss TTrraannssffeerrss AAtt  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr
Land 179,460 - (2,896) 28,092 204,656
Constructions 1,002,436 - (63,061) 44,120 983,495
Machinery and equipment 1,172,560 - (111,996) 91,910 1,152,474
Vehicles 192,096 - (541) 61,655 253,210
Furniture and fixtures 17,460 - (13,501) - 3,959
Other tangibles 5,875 - - - 5,875
Tangibles in progress 49,946 237,694 (37,321) (225,777) 24,542
Advances for tangibles 4,220 33,476 (37,516) - 180
2008 Total 2,624,053 271,170 (266,832) - 2,628,391
2007 Total 2,570,526 160,319 (106,792) - 2,624,053

AACCCCUUMMUULLAATTEEDD  DDEEPPRREECCIIAATTIIOONN AAtt  bbeeggiinnnniinngg DDeepprreecciiaattiioonn  CCoosstt  ooff  ssaalleess  DDiissppoossaallss TTrraannssffeerrss,, AAtt  eenndd AAlllloowwaanncceess NNeett  bbooookk  
ooff  yyeeaarr dduurriinngg  yyeeaarr oorr  lliiqquuiiddaattiioonn ootthheerr ooff  yyeeaarr vvaalluuee

Land - - - - - - - 204,656
Constructions (496,857) (25,868) (34,179) 63,061 - (493,843) (10,628) 479,024
Machinery and equipment (1,014,251) (41,079) (27,551) 111,996 - (970,885) - 181,589
Vehicles (26,486) (10,254) - 541 - (36,199) (197,169) 19,842
Furniture and fixtures (16,814) (127) (460) 13,501 - (3,900) - 59
Other tangibles (5,756) - - - - (5,756) - 119
Tangibles in progress - - - - - - - 24,542
Advances for tangibles - - - - - - (180) -
2008 Total (1,560,164) (77,328) (62,190) 189,099 - (1,510,583) (207,977) 909,831
2007 Total (1,590,142) (73,237) (1,969) 105,529 (345) (1,560,164) (183,291) 880,598

CC))  LLOONNGG--TTEERRMM  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  IINNVVEESSTTMMEENNTTSS  ((IINN  CCZZKK  TTHHOOUUSSAANNDDSS))

Summary of changes in long-term financial investments:
BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt  

AAddddiittiioonnss DDiissppoossaallss RReevvaalluuaattiioonn
BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt

AAddddiittiioonnss DDiissppoossaallss RReevvaalluuaattiioonn
BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt

3311// 1122// 22000066 3311// 1122// 22000077 3311// 1122// 22000088
Subsidiaries 471,529 2,000 - (25,182) 448,347 - (336,127) - 112,220
Associates 1,100 - - - 1,100 - - - 1,100
Allowances (357,190) 23,900 - - (333,290) - 332,190 - (1,100)
Total 115,439 25,900 - (25,182) 116,157 - (3,937) - 112,220

On 8 December 2005, the Company signed a general agreement for 
post-warranty support of L-159 and L-39 aircraft (see Note 19) with the 
Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic pursuant to which the Company
committed itself to hold a significant portion of fixed assets (particularly
land, production halls, airport and other assets necessary for maintaining
the ability to provide service repairs for the Army of the Czech Republic).
The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 417,581
thousand and their net book value was CZK 214,922 thousand as at 31
December 2008. This easement has not been entered in the Land Register.
On 22 October 2007, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s.,
entered into a contract for the establishment of the right of pledge securing
the Company’s immovable assets (buildings and land) with respect to the
provided export loan (see Note 14). As at 31 December 2008, the acquisition
cost of the assets pledged amounted to CZK 274,281 thousand and the net
book value amounted to CZK 155,850 thousand. The acquisition cost of
land was CZK 48,473 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings was CZK
225,808 thousand whereas their net book value amounted to CZK 107,377
thousand.
As at 31 December 2008, certain tangible fixed assets (industrial waste 
storage, exchanger station, fuel storage, etc.) were no longer in service.
These assets had an original cost of CZK 29,995 thousand and net book
value of CZK 10,908 thousand. The Company has adjusted the carrying
amount of these tangible assets to zero (see Note 7).

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total value of small tangible fixed
assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was
CZK 726,150 thousand and CZK 714,816 thousand at acquisition cost, 
respectively.
Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 718,309 thousand are fully depreciated
as at 31 December 2008.
The Company has adjusted the carrying amount of certain tangible assets
for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against income
(see Note 7). Allowances relate to buildings and Ae 270 aircraft and were
established in the amount of 100% of their net book value as the Company
does not expect to use these assets in the future.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, a part of the buildings with a cost 
of CZK 3,409 thousand and CZK 93,393 thousand respectively, and with 
a net book value of CZK 1,510 thousand and CZK 50,748 thousand, 
respectively, were located outside the Company’s production plant (flats,
accommodation facilities). The decrease in the value of buildings located
outside the Company’s production plant was caused in particular by the
sale of objects in Kralupy nad Vltavou.

The Company established an allowance in the amount of CZK 1,100 
thousand for the financial investment in Letov, a.s.
For the purpose of completing the development and production of 
the Ae 270 aircraft, the Company founded a joint venture IBIS Aerospace
Ltd. together with Aerospace Industrial Development Corporation, 
Taiwan (AIDC) in 1997. The contribution comprised of aircraft development
results with a cost of CZK 173,425 thousand, which, however, was valued 
at USD 23,000 thousand (CZK 796,628 thousand). Under the deed of
foundation, the Company contributed in 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively,

an additional USD 2,000 thousand (CZK 70,760 thousand), USD 2,000 
thousand (CZK 76,968 thousand) and USD 5,000 thousand (CZK 188,981
thousand).
Onwards 2001, the Company continued test flights of the Ae 270 
aircraft. During the development stage the Company adjusted technical 
requirements of the plane in order to be competitive and compatible 
with the latest market trends. Meeting these requirements resulted in 
the installation of additional technical equipment. In 2002, the Company
decided to suspend the development of the aircraft Ae 270P and to 
continue with the development of the aircraft equipped with a more 
powerful engine (P&W PT6-66). A prototype enhanced with this engine 
was successfully tested on 25 February 2003. In 2003 and 2004, the 
development of the aircraft continued and in December 2005 and February
2006 the Company obtained certification from the European Aviation Safety
Agency (EASA) and from the American Federal Aviation Authority (FAA), 
respectively. In spite of the significant concentration of production and 
development capacities during the final stage of development, the original
certification schedule was not met.

During the testing phase the Company identified that several technical 
parameters of the plane are low-tech and far behind the current market
requirements. It was decided that simultaneously with the production of
this plane in the current version the Company would begin with the 
preparation for the development of a new upgraded version, which would
meet all current market requirements. Following several months of 
unsuccessful searching for a new investor, the General Meeting of 
shareholders of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. held on 1 November 2007 decided 
on the process of a voluntary winding-up of the company to be finished in
2008. The process of winding-up was completed as at 11 April 2008.
As at 31 December 2007, for the sake of prudence the Company 
established an allowance for the financial investment in IBIS Aerospace
Ltd. of CZK 332,190 thousand, which represented the difference between
the gross book value of this investment and its estimated net realizable
value of CZK 3,740 thousand.
On the basis of an agreement between the partners in the joint venture,
IBIS Aerospace Limited was terminated as at 11 April 2008. The Company
received a share in the liquidation remainder totaling CZK 20,131 thousand
(in the form of a bank transfer of USD 218 thousand, i.e. CZK 3,740 
thousand and tangible fixed assets of CZK 16,391 thousand (A 100% 
allowance was created against the returned tangible fixed assets 
(see Note 7)). The share in the liquidation remainder was classified 
as income from the financial investment.
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SSUUBBSSIIDDIIAARRIIEESS  AANNDD  AASSSSOOCCIIAATTEESS  AASS  AATT  3311 DDEECCEEMMBBEERR  22000088  WWEERREE  AASS  FFOOLLLLOOWWSS  ((IINN  CCZZKK  TTHHOOUUSSAANNDDSS))::

NNaammee TTeecchhnnoommeettrraa  RRaaddoottíínn,,  aa..ss.. LLeettoovv,,  aa..ss..  LLeettiiššttěě  VVooddoocchhooddyy  aa..ss..
Registered office Prague 5 Prague 9 Odolena Voda
Percentage of ownership 100 42.6 100
Total net assets 135,111 - 2,010
Equity 118,315 - 1,901
Basic capital and capital funds 219,426 - 2,000
Funds created from profit 5,862 - -
Retained earnings (92,264) - -
Loss for the current year (14,710) - (99)
Acquisition cost of share 110,220 1,100 2,000
Nominal value of share 219,426 - 2,000
Intrinsic value of share 118,315 - 1,901

SSUUBBSSIIDDIIAARRIIEESS  AANNDD  AASSSSOOCCIIAATTEESS  AASS  AATT  3311 DDEECCEEMMBBEERR  22000077  WWEERREE  AASS  FFOOLLLLOOWWSS  ((IINN  CCZZKK  TTHHOOUUSSAANNDDSS))::

NNaammee TTeecchhnnoommeettrraa  RRaaddoottíínn,,  aa..ss.. IIBBIISS  AAeerroossppaaccee  LLttdd.. LLeettoovv,,  aa..ss..  LLeettiiššttěě  VVooddoocchhooddyy  aa..ss..
Registered office Prague 5 British Virgin Islands Prague 9 Odolena Voda
Percentage of ownership 100 50 42.6 100
Total net assets 152,129 - - -
Equity 133,024 - - -
Basic capital and capital funds 219,426 - - 2,000
Funds created from profit 5,862 - - -
Retained earnings (43,803) - - -
Loss for the current year (48,461) - - -
Acquisition cost of share / interest 110,220 336,127 1,100 2,000
Nominal value of share / interest 219,426 - - 2,000
Intrinsic value of share / interest 133,024 - - -

AAlllloowwaanncceess  aaggaaiinnsstt MMaatteerriiaallss WWoorrkk--iinn--pprrooggrreessss,,  sseemmii--ffiinniisshheedd  pprroodduuccttss  aanndd  ggooooddss AAddvvaanncceess  ggrraanntteedd  ffoorr  iinnvveennttoorryy
Ae 270 330,935 131,587 5,141
L-159 325,099 88,248 -
L-39, L-59 411,168 8,708 3,354
Sikorsky Program 26,726 - 614
Not-assigned material 20,566 544 -
Other inventory 40,196 4,712 -
Total 1,154,690 233,799 9,109

55..  IINNVVEENNTTOORRYY
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its
estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is
determined by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the
analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).

BBaallaannccee  BBaallaannccee  BBaallaannccee  
AAlllloowwaanncceess  aaggaaiinnsstt aass  aatt AAddddiittiioonnss DDeedduuccttiioonnss aass  aatt AAddddiittiioonnss DDeedduuccttiioonnss aass  aatt  

3311// 1122// 22000066 3311// 1122// 22000077 3311// 1122// 22000088
Tangible fixed assets 158,507 106,344 (81,560) 183,291 118,713 (94,027) 207,977
Long-term financial investments 357,190 - (23,900) 333,290 - (332,190) 1,100
Inventory 1,626,859 111,663 (315,708) 1,422,814 71,986 (106,311) 1,388,489
Advances granted for inventory 26,558 102 (18,155) 8,505 604 - 9,109
Advances - other - - - - 6,733 - 6,733
Receivables – legal 2,128 - - 2,128 - - 2,128
Receivables – other 3,263 1,752 (548) 4,467 2,444 (1,722) 5,189

Legal allowances are created in compliance with the Act on Provisions and are tax deductible.

77..  AALLLLOOWWAANNCCEESS
Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets
(see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):

a.s. which held 10 registered shares with a nominal value of CZK 200 
thousand per share. On 3 October 2008, the sole shareholder decided 
on a basic capital increase of Letiště Vodochody a.s. by subscription of 
new shares, which will be paid through a non-monetary contribution, i.e. 
in the form of real estate in the value of CZK 1,857,800 thousand. The basic
capital increase was performed as at 1 January 2009 (see Note 26).

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s. was obtained from
the company’s standalone audited financial statements as at 31 December
2008.
Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from the
company’s standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31 December
2008. The sole shareholder of Letiště Vodochody a.s. is AERO Vodochody

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s. was obtained from
the company’s standalone audited financial statements as at 31 December
2007.
As at 31 December 2007, the Board of Directors of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. did
not approve the financial statements of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. for the year
ended 31 December 2007. With respect to the planned winding-up of IBIS
Aerospace Ltd., the Company established an allowance reducing the value
of interest in IBIS Aerospace Ltd. to its estimated net realizable value.

Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from 
the company’s standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31
December 2007. Letiště Vodochody a.s. was incorporated 
in the Commercial Register on 30 November 2007.
As at 31 December 2008 the Company provided loans to and received 
loans from subsidiaries and associates (see Note 22).

66..  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS
Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful
were charged to income based on the analysis in 2008 and 2007, 
respectively (see Note 7).
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, receivables overdue for more than 
180 days totaled CZK 5,612 thousand and CZK 5,414 thousand, respectively.
The Company wrote off irrecoverable receivables of CZK 1,118 thousand
and CZK 5,184 thousand 
in 2008 and 2007, respectively, due to cancellation of bankruptcy 
proceedings, unsatisfying the claims in bankruptcy proceedings, etc.
In 2008 and 2007, the Company sold receivables of CZK 3,034,027
thousand and CZK 1,945,473 thousand, respectively.

The income from the sales of the receivables was CZK 3,018,610 thousand
and CZK 1,935,656 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively. The nominal
values of these receivables and income from the sales of these receivables
are reflected in Other operating expenses and Other operating revenues,
respectively in the accompanying Income statement.
As at 31 December 2007 other receivables comprise in particular positive
fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
As at 31 December 2007, long-term advances granted include a contractual
deposit in favor of a foreign supplier.
Unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loan 
to Penta Investments Limited (see Note 22).
Receivables from related parties (see Note 22).
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99..  OOTTHHEERR  AASSSSEETTSS
Prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid insurance fees and 
overhead costs, which are charged to income for the year in which they
were incurred.

As at 31 December 2008, unbilled revenues include in particular 
unbilled sales of services and an estimation related to a ceded receivable;
in addition, unbilled revenues include a commission for offset program 
of USD 2,493 thousand, i.e. CZK 48,226 thousand, reduced by received 
advances of USD 1,586 thousand, i.e. CZK 30,684 thousand.
As at 31 December 2007, unbilled revenues include in particular unbilled
sales of services. Revenues are recognised to income for the year in which
they were incurred.

88..  SSHHOORRTT--TTEERRMM  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  AASSSSEETTSS
As at 31 December, the Company had the following restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

22000088 22000077
BBaannkk CCuurrrreennccyy AAmmoouunntt  iinn  ffoorreeiiggnn AAmmoouunntt  AAmmoouunntt  iinn  ffoorreeiiggnn AAmmoouunntt

ccuurrrreennccyy  ((iinn  tthhoouussaannddss)) iinn  CCZZKK  tthhoouussaannddss ccuurrrreennccyy  ((iinn  tthhoouussaannddss)) iinn  CCZZKK  tthhoouussaannddss
Česká národní banka USD 1,323 25,588 1,605 29,007
Deutsche Bank AG Praha USD - - 416 7,521
Česká spořitelna, a.s. USD 287 5,551 308 5,565
Komerční banka, a.s. USD 700 13,542 38 694
Total - 44,681 - 42,787

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 14).

1100..  EEQQUUIITTYY
The basic capital of the Company comprises 2,322,314 priority shares in
materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 2,690,000 registered
shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 887,366 
registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2 and 1
priority registered share in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2.

Other capital funds consist of the fund balance after the financial 
restructuring made in previous years. Other funds from profit were 
created for an issue of employee shares (however this issue has been
abandoned) and social fund.

In 2007, gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities arose due to the
revaluation of the financial investment IBIS Aerospace Ltd. (see Note 4c)
and the revaluation of hedging derivatives (see Note 16). In 2008 gain or
loss on revaluation arose due to the revaluation of hedging derivatives 
(see Note 16).
On 8 February 2007, the sole shareholder TULAROSA a.s. decided on 
a basic capital increase of the Company by subscription of 2,322,314 
new shares with a nominal value of CZK 1,000. 
The issue rate of the shares was CZK 8,000,000 thousand, i.e. CZK 3,445
per share. All the new shares were subscribed to by Salori Holding B.V. 
and paid by the offset of receivables from AERO Vodochody a.s. to Salori
Holding B.V. (see Note 12). The basic capital increase was entered in the
Commercial Register on 22 March 2007.

The movements in the capital accounts during 2008 and 2007 were as follows (in CZK thousands):

BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt  IInnccrreeaassee DDeeccrreeaassee BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt  IInnccrreeaassee DDeeccrreeaassee BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt
3311// 1122// 22000066 3311// 1122// 22000077 3311// 1122// 22000088

Number of shares 3,577,366 2,322,315 - 5,899,681 - - 5,899,681
Basic capital 2,691,775 2,322,314 - 5,014,089 - - 5,014,089
Share premium - 6,127,686 (5,677,686) 450,000 - (450,000) -
Other capital funds 28,720 - - 28,720 - - 28,720
Differences arising from revaluation of assets and liabilities (148,825) 49,111 (25,182) (124,896) 74,535 - (50,361)
Legal reserve fund 199,743 - - 199,743 11,788 - 211,531
Other funds 16,508 - - 16,508 - - 16,508
Retained earnings 377 - - 377 223,965 - 224,342
Accumulated loss (9,243,914) 964,330 (5,677,686) (4,530,558) 450,000 - (4,080,558)

LLoossss  ffoorr  22000066 ((996644,,333300)) PPrrooffiitt  ffoorr  22000077 223355,,775533
Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium 5,677,686 Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium 450,000
Transfer to accumulated loss of previous years (964,330) Transfer to accumulated loss of previous years -
Allocation to legal reserve fund - Allocation to legal reserve fund 11,788
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings - Undistributed profits added to retained earnings 223,965
Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2007 377 Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2008 224,342
Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2007 (4,530,558) Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2008 (4,080,558)

The General Meeting held on 7 December 2007 decided to compensate 
the accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of CZK 5,677,686
thousand from share premium.
On 7 December 2007 the Company’s General Meeting decided on a basic
capital increase by subscription of a new share with a nominal value of
CZK 2 and an issue rate of CZK 450,000 thousand. The share was subscribed
to by Salori Holding B.V. and paid by the offset of receivables from AERO
Vodochody a.s. to Salori Holding B.V. (see Note 12). The basic capital 
increase was entered in the Commercial Register on 30 January 2008.
The Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 April 2008 decided to 
compensate the accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of 
CZK 450,000 thousand from share premium.
The Annual General Meetings held on 19 August 2008, 17 April 2008, 7
December 2007 and 18 July 2007, respectively approved the following profit
distribution for 2007, loss compensation for 2006 and compensation of the
accumulated loss of previous years (in CZK thousands):
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PPrroovviissiioonn  ffoorr  gguuaarraanntteeee  rreeppaaiirrss  LL--115599  aanndd  LL--115599TT11
The provision for guarantee repairs of L-159 light combat aircraft was 
established to cover the expected amount of repairs of the 72 aircraft sold
to the Army of the Czech Republic. In 2008 and 2007, the Company released
a portion of the provision based on the volume of completed repairs. 
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the remaining part of the provision was
adjusted to cover the costs for additional post guarantee repairs for which
the Company has been contractually obliged, the so-called “bulletins”.
In 2007 a provision for guarantee repairs was created with respect to 
upgrading of four aircraft L-159 to L-159T1 for the Army of the Czech 
Republic. The balance of provisions as at 31 December 2008 represents 
an estimation of future repairs.

PPrroovviissiioonnss  ffoorr  ccoonnttrraacctt  AAee  227700  aanndd  TTeecchhnnoommeettrraa  oorrddeerrss
The Company does not plan to produce a significant quantity of Ae 270 
aircraft in the current version. Accordingly, in 2005 the management of 
the Company established a provision of CZK 45,557 thousand for fixed 
contracts and placed orders for material to be purchased from third 
parties, which will not be used. In 2008 and 2007, the original provision 
was reduced by the value of materials used and cancelled orders by 
agreement with suppliers.

PPrroovviissiioonn  ffoorr  aaccccrruueedd  vvaaccaattiioonn
In 2008, the Company recorded a provision for accrued vacation totaling
CZK 12,415 thousand. 
In 2007, the Company recorded a provision for accrued vacation of CZK
11,299 thousand.

SSiikkoorrsskkyy  gguuaarraanntteeee  rreeppaaiirrss
The Company established a provision in the amount of estimated costs for
expected guarantee repairs related to the Sikorsky helicopter deliveries.
In 2008 a constructional defect affecting 193 Sikorsky helicopters was 
detected, which was caused by a failure in the implementation of the 
helicopter design. For the sake of prudence, the Company established 
a provision for the elimination of the constructional defect in the total
amount of CZK 88,893 thousand.

PPrroovviissiioonn  ffoorr  bbaannkk  gguuaarraanntteeee  EEggyypptt
The Company created a provision for the estimated loss related to the use
of a bank guarantee issued in favor of the Ministry of Defence of Egypt.

1111..  PPRROOVVIISSIIOONNSS
The movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in CZK thousands):

PPrroovviissiioonnss BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt  AAddddiittiioonnss DDeedduuccttiioonnss BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt AAddddiittiioonnss DDeedduuccttiioonnss BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt
3311// 1122// 22000066 3311// 1122// 22000077 3311// 1122// 22000088

Contractual charges and penalties - - - - 5,200 - 5,200
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1 67,040 20,429 (33,885) 53,584 - (43,633) 9,951
Overhaul Tunis 2,086 2,859 (1,543) 3,402 - (2,300) 1,102
Ae 270 contract 18,422 - (7,552) 10,870 - (5,435) 5,435
Technometra orders 2,141 - (2,141) - - - -
Staff bonuses 8,371 26,940 (8,371) 26,940 35,887 (26,940) 35,887
Provision for accrued vacation 9,591 64,562 (62,854) 11,299 63,719 (62,603) 12,415
Sikorsky guarantee repairs 55,580 2,496 - 58,076 105,478 - 163,554
Guarantee repairs Thailand 680 - (348) 332 - (332) -
Provision for bank guarantee Egypt 26,168 - (3,507) 22,661 1,589 - 24,250
Total 190,079 117,286 (120,201) 187,164 211,873 (141,243) 257,794

In 2008 and 2007, the changes related to a long-term payable to Salori Holding B.V. were as follows (in CZK thousands):

BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt CCaappiittaalliizzaattiioonn  ooff LLooaann  iinntteerreesstt LLooaann  BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt WWaaiivviinngg  ooff  pprriinncciippaall LLooaann  iinntteerreesstt BBaallaannccee  aass  aatt
3311// 1122// 22000066 llooaann  aanndd  iinntteerreesstt rreeppaayymmeenntt 3311// 1122// 22000077 aanndd  iinntteerreesstt 3311// 1122// 22000088

Loan 10,122,723 (8,218,157) - (1,345,087) 559,479 (150,000) - 409,479
Interest 304,717 (231,843) 82,469 - 155,343 (20,391) 20,451 155,403
Total 10,427,440 8,450,000 82,469 (1,345,087) 714,822 (170,391) 20,451 564,882

recorded by AERO Vodochody a.s. with respect to the loans granted to
AERO Vodochody a.s. by the bank (Česká exportní banka, a.s.). AERO 
Vodochody a.s. may redeem the subordinated payable only after it has 
settled the liability arising from the loan.

On 4 September 2007, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded 
a payable subordination agreement concerning the payable that the 
Company has to Salori Holding B.V. Pursuant to the agreement, the 
payable to Salori Holding B.V. shall be subordinated to the payable 

On 7 January 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement on the change in provisions on loan repayment. Accordingly, 
the companies agreed to replace the existing fixed interest rate by a fee
based on the financial result of the Company before taxes and interest
(EBIT). However, the maximum fee shall not exceed the amount 
corresponding to 140% of the Czech National Bank discount rate times 
the unpaid loan principal. In addition, the maturity of the loan was 
postponed to 31 January 2059.
On 30 November 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement on waiving a portion of the loan totaling CZK 150,000 thousand.

The Company recorded waived part of loan principal to Other finance 
income in the accompanying Income statement. 
The interest expense relating to the loan from Salori Holding B.V. for 2008
and 2007 was CZK 20,451 thousand and CZK 82,469 thousand, respectively.
As at 27 March 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement (Settlement Agreement) on waiving of interest of CZK 20,391
thousand for period from 20 January 2007 to 6 March 2007. The Company
recorded waived interest to Other finance income in the accompanying 
Income statement. 

1122..  LLOONNGG--TTEERRMM  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
As at 31 December, the Company had the following other long-term payables (in CZK thousands):

TTeerrmmss//CCoonnddiittiioonnss 22000088 22000077

Payables to Salori Holding B.V.
Maturity: 2059; Floating interest rate,

564,882 714,822up to 140% of the CNB discount rate
Total 564,882 714,822

1133..  CCUURRRREENNTT  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company had overdue current 
payables totaling CZK 64,709 thousand and CZK 76,938 thousand, 
respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, materials in transit, supplies of
material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which
they were incurred.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, advances received include in particular
an advance payment from Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation for the production
of aerospace components (cable assemblies) and an advance payment
from Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. for the production of aircraft parts.
As at 31 December 2008, the Company had liabilities of CZK 17,104 
thousand owing to social security and health insurance premiums.
As at 31 December 2008 Other liabilities comprise in particular negative
fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
Payables to related parties (see Note 22).
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1144..  BBAANNKK  LLOOAANNSS  AANNDD  BBOORRRROOWWIINNGGSS
As at 22 October 2007, the Company signed a loan agreement with Česká
exportní banka, a.s., with a total available credit limit of USD 60,000 
thousand (CZK 1,160,760 thousand). As at 31 December 2007, the drawn
down element of the loan was USD 33,810 thousand (CZK 611,213 thousand).
These funds can be used only for financing of the Sikorsky Program. 
The loan is secured by pledged receivables and rights resulting from the
general agreement with Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation and by pledged 
immovable assets (see Note 4b).

As at 31 December 2008, the drawn down element of the loan was USD
58,519 thousand (CZK 1,132,116 thousand). The loan maturity is set on 
31 July 2009; the loan bears a floating interest rate of 3M LIBOR + margin
and the total interest expense amounted to CZK 35,352 thousand and 
CZK 4,013 thousand, respectively in 2008 and 2007.

1155..  OOTTHHEERR  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS
As at 31 December 2008, accruals include in particular outstanding interest
to Česká exportní banka, a.s., and a payable from the purchase of land in 2007.

Deferred income includes in particular revenue from sales related to the
Sikorsky contract, which is recognized into income for the year in which it
was earned.

1166..  DDEERRIIVVAATTIIVVEESS
The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at
31 December 2007 and 2008. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with

fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other receivables
and other payables, respectively, and in differences arising from the 
revaluation of assets and liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):

BBaannkk GGuuaarraanntteeee TTeerrmmss AAmmoouunntt
Česká národní banka - performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/09 24,250

- performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/09 1,242
Česká spořitelna, a.s. - surety non-specified 3,772

- surety non-specified 926
- surety non-specified 766

Komerční banka, a.s. - surety 03/09 27,084
Total 58,040

As at 31 December 2007, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):

BBaannkk GGuuaarraanntteeee TTeerrmmss AAmmoouunntt
Česká národní banka - performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/08 22,661

- performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/08 1,161
Česká spořitelna, a.s. - surety non-specified 3,525

- advance payment guarantee non-specified 10,576
- surety non-specified 3,525
- surety non-specified 865

Komerční banka, a.s. - surety 1/08 245
- surety 1/08 245
- surety 5/08 68
- surety 9/08 96

Deutsche bank AG - letter of credit 2/08 4,520
- performing letter of guarantee 1/08 579

Total 48,066
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash deposited in restricted bank accounts of CZK 44,681 thousand 
and CZK 42,787 thousand, respectively (see Note 8).

The following table summarizes face values and positive or negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

22000088 22000077
((iinn  CCZZKK  tthhoouussaannddss)) CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall// FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee CCoonnttrraaccttuuaall// FFaaiirr  vvaalluuee

FFaaccee PPoossiittiivvee NNeeggaattiivvee FFaaccee PPoossiittiivvee NNeeggaattiivvee
Foreign exchange contracts 765,140 - 50,361 374,606 49,111 -
Total derivatives held for hedging 765,140 - 50,361 374,606 49,111 -

Based on the loan agreement, the Company is obliged to fulfill following financial covenants: 

CCoovveennaanntt CCaallccuullaattiioonn RReeqquuiirreedd  vvaalluuee
Resulting price calculation Direct costs of S-76 production / S-76 selling price <= 91%
Total indebtedness Equity / total assets >= 15%
Return on operations Operating profit or loss / sale of finished products and services >= 3.5%
ROA Profit or loss for the period / total assets >= 0
As at 31 December 2008, the Company met all the above financial indicators.

Aircraft Corporation and by pledged immovable assets (see Note 4b). 
The first drawing of the loan will be used for refinancing of the loan from
2007. The loan maturity is set on 31 January 2010 and the loan bears 
a floating interest rate of 3M LIBOR + margin. The Company made no use
of this facility as at 31 December 2008.

As at 22 December 2008, the Company signed a loan agreement No. 21559
with Česká exportní banka, a.s., with a total available credit limit of USD
60,000 thousand (CZK 1,160,760 thousand). These funds can be used only
for financing of the Sikorsky Program. The loan is secured by pledged 
receivables and rights resulting from the general agreement with Sikorsky



1919 2009

60 | | 61

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1188..  LLEEAASSEESS
The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance
sheet (see Note 3i).

1199..  CCOOMMMMIITTMMEENNTTSS  AANNDD  CCOONNTTIINNGGEENNCCIIEESS
The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records
liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant to the
sale contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the
income realized. It is not possible to determine the amount until contract
completion.
Under the standard terms of its sales contracts, the Company has 
a responsibility to make spare parts available for a period between 
10-15 years after the date of sale.
As at 8 December 2005, the Company concluded with the Ministry of 
Defence of the Czech Republic a general agreement for after warranty
support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft. According to this agreement, in the 
period until January 2029, the Company is obliged to provide services,
maintenance and spare parts for planes already owned by the Army of 
the Czech Republic, and to assist during their modernization. In cases of
significant breaches of the contractual terms or in case of withdrawal from
the contract, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic is entitled to
claim a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company.
Under the terms of this agreement, a significant portion of its fixed assets
may not be disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term 
contracts with suppliers. 
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the commitments arising from 
contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 1,168,455 thousand
and to CZK 1,755,385 thousand, respectively; of that the supplies for the 

Sikorsky Program totaled CZK 1,104,574 thousand and CZK 1,593,819 
thousand as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively. These contracts,
as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that
the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfil contractual obligations or 
if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept
responsibility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded a liability insurance for its own aviation 
activity, an accident insurance of aircraft and an insurance for damage
caused by faulty products. The Company has concluded a combined 
insurance limit in the amount of USD 250,000 thousand regarding the 
liability for product within the Sikorsky Program and of USD 75,000 
thousand regarding other liability emerging from aeronautical operations
for one and all insured accidents arising during the insurance period 
worldwide. The insurance covers the major risks emerging from the 
Company’s aeronautical operations.
In 1998, the Company together with GEO s.r.o. conducted an environmental
audit, the result of which was, inter alia, a quantification of investments 
required for making the production ecofriendly and for remedy of 
environmental damage. The cost estimate totaled CZK 248,375 thousand.
Based on the Contract for repayment of costs incurred in the settlement of
environmental liabilities concluded between the Company and the National
Property Fund of the Czech Republic on 12 August 1998, 
the National Property Fund (currently the Ministry of Finance of the Czech
Republic) should cover those costs of the Company which are reasonably
incurred up to CZK 2,691,926 thousand, which exceeds the estimate.

1177..  IINNCCOOMMEE  TTAAXXEESS

22000088 22000077
((iinn  CCZZKK  tthhoouussaannddss)) ((iinn  CCZZKK  tthhoouussaannddss))

Profit before taxes 401,589 235,753
Non-taxable revenues and non-deductible expenses, net, related to write-off of share in joint-venture company IBIS Aerospace Ltd. 174,204 -
Non-taxable revenues (29,350) (5,439)
Difference between book and tax depreciation 75,980 71,534
Non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances (1,582) (220,010)
Change in provisions 70,630 (2,915)
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses, shortages and losses) 105,699 191,146
Taxable profit 797,170 270,069
Tax loss carry-forward (797,170) (270,069)
Current income tax rate 21 % 24 %
Current tax expense - -

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):

22000088 22000077
DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  iitteemmss DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx  DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx

aasssseett lliiaabbiilliittyy aasssseett lliiaabbiilliittyy
Difference between net book value of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes 8,862 - (5,214)
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory 4,051 - 2,525 -
Allowance against inventory 263,813 - 271,493 -
Allowance against fixed assets 39,481 - 33,505 -
Provisions 50,400 - 35,973 -
Tax loss carryforward 159,735 - 315,933 -
Total 526,342 - 661,429 (5,214)
Net 526,342 - 656,215 -

The Company has not recorded a deferred tax asset on the basis that its future recovery is highly uncertain.

Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term expires) as at 31 Decem-
ber 2008 and 2007 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):

PPaayymmeennttss  PPaayymmeennttss                            RReemmaaiinniinngg  ppaayymmeenntt  aass  aatt  3311// 1122// 22000088
DDeessccrriippttiioonn TTeerrmmss TToottaall  mmaaddee  aass  aatt  mmaaddee  aass  aatt  DDuuee  wwiitthhiinn  DDuuee  oovveerr

lleeaassee 3311// 1122// 22000088 3311// 1122// 22000077 oonnee  yyeeaarr oonnee  yyeeaarr
Machinery Until 2013 42,118 2,368 - 7,638 32,112
Car Until 2009 964 697 326 267 -

In accordance with the Income Taxes Act, the Company can carry forward
tax losses generated since 2004 for up to five years. The remaining tax
loss carry-forward from the years 2004 through 2006, the benefit of which

has not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements,
amounted to CZK 829,658 thousand as at 31 December 2008. It will 
be recorded when realized.



1919 2009

62 | | 63

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2222..  RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTYY  IINNFFOORRMMAATTIIOONN
The majority shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s. is TULAROSA a.s., 
which is owned by Penta Investments Limited with its registered office in 
Limassol, Cyprus, which owns shares in other companies both in the 
Czech Republic and abroad, and with which AERO Vodochody a.s. has 
no significant trading and other activities, except for Privatbanka, a.s., 
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited, Salori Holding B.V. and Penta 
Investments Limited.
The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive
officers were granted no loans, guarantees, advances or other benefits in
2008 and 2007 and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

Benefits of certain members of the Company’s statutory bodies and 
management consist of the use of automobiles for private purposes.
The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related 
parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income
were CZK 66,093 thousand and CZK 42,584 thousand in 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.
Pursuant to the agreement concluded in 2008, the Company assumed 
a guarantee for liabilities and obligations of Technometra Radotín a.s. 
from finance lease contracts entered into with SG Equipment Finance s.r.o.
concerning machinery up to the limit of CZK 120,000 thousand.

2200..  RREEVVEENNUUEESS
The breakdown of revenues on ordinary activities is as follows (in CZK thousands):

22000088 22000077
DDoommeessttiicc FFoorreeiiggnn DDoommeessttiicc FFoorreeiiggnn

Aviation production 438,845 3,612 889 826,660 3,460,967
Non-aviation production 49,395 - 19,360 -
Total revenues 488,240 3,612 889 846,020 3,460,967

In 2008, the revenues of the company are concentrated primarily with three
main customers in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation,
the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic and Alena Aeronautica S.p.A.

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies 
received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 360 thousand and
CZK 325 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
In 2008, members of managerial bodies included both senior management
and the middle management layer. Therefore, the information regarding
members of managerial bodies for 2008 and 2007 is not comparable.

2211..  PPEERRSSOONNNNEELL  AANNDD  RREELLAATTEEDD  EEXXPPEENNSSEESS
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in CZK thousands):

22000088 22000077
TToottaall  ppeerrssoonnnneell OOff  wwhhiicchh::  mmeemmbbeerrss  TToottaall  ppeerrssoonnnneell OOff  wwhhiicchh::  mmeemmbbeerrss

ooff  mmaannaaggeerriiaall  bbooddiieess ooff  mmaannaaggeerriiaall  bbooddiieess
Average number of employees 1,293 74 1,314 18
Wages and salaries 497,527 90,547 527,290 33,370
Social security and health insurance 163,007 22,123 174,348 11,630
Social cost 11,016 1,454 12,219 431
Other social security 2,286 - 3,040 -
Bonuses to statutory representatives 360 360 325 325
Total personnel expenses 674,196 114,244 717,222 45,756

Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

RReellaatteedd  ppaarrttyy DDuuee  ddaatteess 22000088 22000077
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – loan 2009 1,000 -
Penta Investments Limited – loan in CZK 2009 350,000 200,000
Penta Investments Limited – loan in USD 2009 554,263 11,751
Loans total 905,263 211,751
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – trade receivables 2009 243 17
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – advance payment - - 2,911
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – lease guarantee 2009 328 -
IBIS Aerospace Ltd. - - 158
Penta Investments Limited – accrued interest 2009 60,507 21,799
Penta Investments Limited – trade receivables 2009 805 -
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited 2009 88 141
Tirrellus, a.s. - - 251
Letiště Vodochody a.s. 2009 109 -
Other short-term receivables total 92,080 25,277

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 related parties were provided no advances.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded a deposit in related party Privatbanka, a.s. of CZK 50,380 thousand and CZK 150,160 thousand.  

Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

RReellaatteedd  ppaarrttyy DDuuee  ddaatteess 22000088 22000077
Technometra Radotín, a.s. 2009 2,111 448 
Penta Investments Limited 2009 - 7
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited 2009 4,291 -
Total 6,402 455

The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Purchases including interest were CZK 95,828
thousand and CZK 18,835 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Long-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

RReellaatteedd  ppaarrttyy DDuuee  ddaatteess 22000088 22000077
Salori Holding B.V. 2059 564,882 714,822

Long-term payables to Salori Holding B.V. relate primarily to the payable from loan; the reduction of the payable results from a waiving of principal of CZK
150,000 thousand and interest of CZK 20,451 thousand (see Note 12).
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2233..  FFUUTTUURREE  OOFF  TTHHEE  CCOOMMPPAANNYY
The Company’s production portfolio consists of two main production 
programs. The Military Program comprises the L-159 Program and 
overhauls of earlier types of aircraft. The Aerostructures Program 
is focused mainly on the production of the S-76 helicopter 
for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, 
production of the center wing box for the company Alenia Aeronautica 
and cooperation with other important worldwide aerospace producers.
The Company has no contracts for the sale of the L-159 aircraft. The only
contractual partner of the production program L-159 is the Ministry 
of Defence of the Czech Republic. As at 8 December 2005, the Company
concluded with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic 
a general agreement for after warranty support for the aircraft within
which the Company would provide services, maintenance and assist in the
modernization of the fleet and deliveries of spare parts. The contract was
signed for a definite period until January 2029. Since the beginning of the
production of the L-159 aircraft, the Company has sold a total of 72 planes
to the one and only customer (i.e. to the Ministry of Defence of the Czech
Republic). The Company continues its marketing activities to promote the
sales of new aircraft or possible sales of the unused L-159 aircraft of the
Army of the Czech Republic.
Until 2008, the production of Sikorsky helicopters had a growing trend.
Based on the binding orders already received from Sikorsky Aircraft 
Corporation for the next year, the Company expects a decrease of the 
production in 2009. Based on the cooperation agreement with the Italian
aircraft producer Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A., the Company will supply 
thirteen pieces of the center wing box for the C-27J Spartan 

cargo aircraft in 2009. In 2007 the Company signed a contract with 
the French company Latécoére Toulouse for supplies of hinges and inner
structures of doors for regional transport jet planes Embraer 170  
and Embraer 190 in the total amount of approximately one billion Czech
crowns. In the period from 2008 to 2012, the Company should supply 
to Latécoére about 800 door subassemblies, with the production 
commencing in the current year. 
The Company sees also perspectives in the aerostructures production 
with other aerospace producers. Currently, negotiations are under way 
with leading aerospace producers concerning product subdeliveries.
As at 31 December 2008, the Company had equity of CZK 1,765,860 
thousand, share capital of CZK 5,014,089 thousand and accumulated 
loss of CZK 3,856,216 thousand. In compliance with the Commercial 
Code, a company whose accumulated loss exceeds half of its share capital
must file for bankruptcy or take measures aimed at reducing the loss. 
The Company will continue to exercise the approved measures for reducing
the accumulated loss in 2009.
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is contingent on
the development of the above described facts, especially on the majority
shareholder’s strategic decisions and plans. 
The management of the company is currently preparing a new long-term
development strategy and objectives of the Company to be submitted to
shareholders. The financial statements were prepared based on the 
assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern in the 
subsequent year; therefore, they contain no adjustments that might be 
required owing to this uncertainty.

2244..  RREESSEEAARRCCHH  AANNDD  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  CCOOSSTTSS
Research and development costs amounted to CZK 59,016 thousand and
CZK 66,339 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively, and were expensed
as incurred.

2255..  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  IITTEEMMSS  OOFF  IINNCCOOMMEE  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT
In 2008 and 2007, other operating revenues comprise in particular 
revenues from sale of receivables (see Note 6).
In 2008 and 2007, other operating expenses include in particular the 
nominal value of sold receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages 
and insurance fees.
In 2008, investments expenses include a write-off of the financial 
investment IBIS Aerospace Limited (see Note 4c).

2266..  SSUUBBSSEEQQUUEENNTT  EEVVEENNTTSS
As at 1 January 2009 the Company increased the basic capital of the 
subsidiary Letiště Vodochody a.s. in the form of a non-monetary 
contribution by CZK 1,857,800 thousand to a total of CZK 1,859,800 
thousand (i.e. 9,299 shares in materialized form, with a nominal value 
of CZK 200 thousand per share).

2277..  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  ((SSEEEE  AAPPPPEENNDDIIXX  11))
The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method. 
The Company did not consider any cash equivalents.

2288..  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  EEQQUUIITTYY  ((SSEEEE  NNOOTTEE  1100))

The financial statements were drawn up on April 2, 2009.

In 2008, other finance income consists mainly of income from waived part
of principal and interest from loan from Salori Holding B.V. (see Note 12)
and foreign currency gains. In 2008, other finance expenses consist mainly
of foreign currency losses. In 2007, other finance income and expense 
consist mainly of foreign currency gains and losses.
Extraordinary gains for 2008 include a write-off of old accruals for which
the suppliers failed to produce final invoices.

Statutory auditor’s fees as at 31 December were as follows:

SSeerrvviicceess 22000088 22000077
Statutory audit 2,500 2,500
Other assurance services - -
Total 2,500 2,500
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RReeppoorrtt  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  ooff  AAEERROO  VVooddoocchhooddyy  aa..ss..  aaccccoorrddiinngg  ttoo  
pprroovviissiioonn  ooff  SSeeccttiioonn  6666aa  ooff  tthhee  AAcctt  NNoo..  551133//119999,,  CCoollll..  tthhee  CCoommmmeerrcciiaall  CCooddee,,
aass  aammeennddeedd  ((ffuurrtthheerr  rreeffeerrrreedd  ttoo  aass  ““CCoommmmeerrcciiaall  CCooddee””))

SSEECCTTIIOONN  II..  CCOONNTTRROOLLLLEEDD  AANNDD  CCOONNTTRROOLLLLIINNGG  PPAARRTTYY

CCOONNTTRROOLLLLEEDD  PPAARRTTYY
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Seat at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Postcode 250 70
Identification No.: 00010545
Registered in the Companies Register maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague, Section B, File 449 (further referred to as “Company”)

SSEECCTTIIOONN  IIVV..  CCOONNTTRRAACCTTSS  AANNDD  AAGGRREEEEMMEENNTTSS  CCOONNCCLLUUDDEEDD  BBYY  RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTIIEESS
In the decisive period, the following contracts between related parties were signed:

PPaarrttyy CCoonnttrraacctt  NNaammee DDaattee  ooff  SSiiggnnaattuurree PPrroovviiddeedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee GGaaiinneedd  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee DDuurraattiioonn DDeettrriimmeenntt

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
Amendment no. 1 to Loan Facility  

6. 2. 2008
Shortened Shortened 

1 year NoneAgreement signed on 26. 6. 2007 maturity for 1 year maturity for 1 year

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
Contract on provision of sublicenses to 

27. 2. 2008
Pecuniary Rights for Indefinite

Nonesoftware and maintenance of software consideration SAP licenses period

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
Amendment no. 2 to Loan Facility

25. 6. 2008
Prolongation Prolongation

1 year NoneAgreement signed on 26. 6. 2007 of loan of loan

Amendment no. 3 to Loan Facility 
Increased limit  Increased limit 

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
Agreement signed on 27. 6. 2007

21. 4. 2008 and shortened and shortened 1 year None
maturity for 1 year maturity for 1 year

General agreement on electronic
Electronic Electronic

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
communications services and 

9. 5. 2008 communications communications 3 years Noneon sale of electronic communications
services servicesdevices and its accessories – T Mobile

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd
Amendment no. 4 to Loan Facility

25. 6. 2008
Prolongation Prolongation

1 year NoneAgreement signed on 27. 6. 2007 of loan of loan

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd,,
Amendment no. 1 Insurance Opening of Cancellation of the  

Indefinite
TTUULLAARROOSSAA  aa..ss..,,  SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV..

Contract  no. 125006614 26. 9. 2008 mortgage sublimit to contract
period

None
with EGAP and ČEB to bill on loan with ČEB

Pledge of bonds Continuation
PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd,, Agreement on 

29. 9. 2008
to receivable of of contract  Indefinite 

NoneTTUULLAARROOSSAA  aa..ss..,,  SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV.. mortgage for bonds PENTA Investments on loan period
limited to ČEB with ČEB

PPeennttaa  IInnvveessttmmeennttss  LLiimmiitteedd,,  Loan Facility Agreement 
22. 12. 2008

Loan Facility Loan Facility
1 year NoneTTUULLAARROOSSAA  aa..ss..,,  SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV.. no. 21559 Agreement Agreement

SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV..
Agreement on the change of 

7. 1. 2008
Loan Facility Loan Facility

50 years Noneobligations regarding the receivable Agreement Agreement
SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV.. Settlement agreement 27. 3. 2008 Remission of debt Remission of debt Nonrecurring None
SSaalloorrii  HHoollddiinngg  BB..VV.. Agreement on remission of the debt 30. 11. 2008 Remission of debt Remission of debt Nonrecurring None

RRoottoorrtteecchh  AAeerroo  CCoommppoossiitteess  LLiimmiitteedd
Contracts on purchase 

2008 Purchase price Goods
Indefinite 

Noneof goods delivery period

CCOONNTTRROOLLLLIINNGG  PPAARRTTYY
Penta Holding Limited
Seat at 44 Paphos, Griva Digeni,
Salamis House, 3rd floor, Postcode 8020, Cyprus Republic
Registration No.: HE 101 570

SSEECCTTIIOONN  IIII..  RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTIIEESS
Related parties are represented by the Company and parties directly and
indirectly controlling, and companies controlled by the controlling party,
i.e. from January 4, 2007 parties controlled by Penta Holding Limited.  

SSEECCTTIIOONN  IIIIII..  DDEECCIISSIIVVEE  PPEERRIIOODD
This report was elaborated for the period from January 1, 2008 to 
December 31, 2008.

SSEECCTTIIOONN  VV..  OOTTHHEERR  LLEEGGAALL  AACCTTSS  BBEETTWWEEEENN  RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTIIEESS
No other legal acts are known to the Company carried out in the interest 
of the related parties.

SSEECCTTIIOONN  VVII..  OOTTHHEERR  MMEEAASSUURREESS  BBEETTWWEEEENN  RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTIIEESS
No other measures were carried out in the interest of the related 
parties to the knowledge of the Company.  

SSEECCTTIIOONN  VVIIII..  CCOONNCCLLUUSSIIOONN
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. states that it proceeded
with all due diligence of a manager to establish the circle of related parties
for the purpose of this report: by consulting the controlling parties, 
both in the period before and after the change in the owner of the Company, 
regarding the circle of parties, which were controlled by these parties in
the given period.

The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. proclaims that all 
fulfillments, considerations respectively, which were provided 
on the basis of the relations mentioned in Sections IV. – VI. of this report,
were in a customary amount.

This report was presented for review to the Supervisory Board and to the
auditor, who will perform the audit of the financial statements as required
by a special law. 

In Odolena Voda, March 27, 2009

Ondřej Benáček Petr Brychta
Member of the Board Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody a.s. AERO Vodochody a.s.
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